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Trustees’ Report

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and
auditor’s report of the charitable company for the year to 31 August 2019. The
annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report
under company law.

During the year, the Trust operated seven schools across Bedfordshire and Essex:
Lancot School based in Dunstable in Bedfordshire, which converted as a fast track
academy on Ist September 2015, when it joined the Trust. Prior to this, the school
had been judged by Ofsted to have ‘Serious Weaknesses’. It was judged to be
‘Good’ in all areas by Ofsted in July 2018.

Kempston Challenger Academy (KCA), based in Kempston, opened in September
2016 as a merger of the Robert Bruce Middle School (‘RBMS’) and the
Hastingsbury Business and Enterprise College (‘HBEC®), it joined . the Trust in
September 2015. The academy became a full secondary provision in September
2018 and was judged to be ‘Good’ in all areas by Ofsted in September
2018. B

Daubeney Academy (DA); also based in Kempston, joined on 1 September 2016
as an existing middle school academy with a ‘Good’ Ofsted rating from May 2016.
It is now a small-secondary 11-16 school.

Ahe Deanes School, based in Thundersley, near Southend in Essex, joined in
“October:2016 as a sponsored academy. It had hlstorlcally been at significant risk.

iof ¢ closure with. strong local competition and a ‘Reguires Improvement’ Ofstedm L

ratmg “The Deanes caters for 11-16 year olds. The academy was inspected in
!September 2019 under the new framework and: was given a ‘Requires
dImprovement’ rating but with ‘Good’ for behaviour and ‘Good’ for personal
‘PDevelopment e
“Hadleigh Junior School, based in Hadleigh, near Southend has pupils aged from
7-11 and joined as an existing academy in March 2017. It currently holds a ‘Good’
Ofsted rating obtained in December 2013.

The Westborough School which is based in Southend, Essex and has pupils from
age 3-11, joined as an existing academy in July 2017. It also joined as a good, but
‘coasting’ school.

Springfield Lower School, based in Kempston, joined CMAT in November 2017
as a ‘requires improvement’ convertor school. It is now a full age primary school
and is now called Springfield Primary School (SP).

The three academies in Kempston are now working together under new leadership
as The Kempston Challenger Federation.

The Trust’s academies had a combined pupil roll of 2,980 in the October 2019 term’s
school census. Total capacity is 3,989.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies on page 33 of this document, and comply with the charitable company’s
Articles of Association, the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the ESFA,
the Companies Act 2006 and Charities SORP (FRS102). The financial results for
‘the Trust presented in these accounts for the year to 31 August 2019 and the
financial position at 31 August 2019 only include the central trust activities and the
individual academies.



STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

“The Challenger Multi Academy Trust (the ‘Trust’) is a company limited by guarantee,
incorporated on 17 October 2014, with no share capital (registration no. 9270040) and
an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association
are the primary governing documents of the multi-academy trust. The trustees of The
Challenger Multi Academy Trust Limited are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the trustees who were in office at 31 August 2019 and who served during
the year are included in the Reference and Administration Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the
company in the event of it being wound up while he/she/they are members, or within
one year after he/she/they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she/they cease to be a
member.

Truste€s’ Indemnities A .

The Trustees are directors of the charitable company for’ the purposes of the
Compames Act 2006 and Trustees for the purposes of charity legislation. Trustees of
the company are covered by the Trust’s insurance policy’ under their Trustees

mdemmty pohcy ' 3
. T . 8 .t -.-\‘%V‘l’.
Meth@fd of Recruitment.and Appointment or Electlon of Truste®§..... . {8 .

The mémbers of the Trust are: the subscribers to the Memor%.ndum and AI'thlCS of
Assocfation of the Trust. The trustees include up to 4 personsi‘who may be appointed
as trustees by the Trust; the chairman of Trustees; and any addmonal members as set
out in &iticle 16. Any potential new trustees are interviewed b}ﬁﬂ" he Trust by the Chief
Executive, to ensure suitability and relevant experience relevart to the interests of the
Trust. The term of office is 4 years and thereafter they may be re-appointed.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

An induction programme is in place for new Trustees which enables them to gain an
understanding of the ethos, values and strategic direction of the Trust, as well as the
responsibilities of charity trustees. Trustees are also required to visit the academies
and participate in governance training programmes.

Organisational Structure

The Challenger Board meets on a regular basis throughout the year and receives
regular reports from the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer. Financial
matters including the audit are considered as part of the main board agenda items.
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CMAT joined Challenge Partners which provides peer assessment and challenge
between schools and academies. During 2018/2019 the trust restructured its senior
leadership functions and created three Executive Head roles from within the trust who
have responsibilities for secondary, primary and special provision across the trust as

. well as wider elements with the trust improvement plan.

The Executive is made up of the members listed on page 3. It is responsible for
implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them.
Each academy has its own Local Goveming Body as set out in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and their accountabilities/responsibilities are set out in the
ARCI framework. They act as a critical friend to the head teacher and senior leaders
and are responsible for monitoring, challenging and supporting them in raising
standards in areas at the academy

Since our last report, further steps have been taken by CMAT in order to reach this
standard across all areas of its responsibility
Including:

4 e Appointed asnew Chairman, Frank Green-€BE who has extensive experience

.in both Multi Academy Trusts as a former Chief Executive of one of the top
- .seven MATs in the country (as identified by Ofsted) and more broadly in
education as the former National Commissioner for Schools (NSC)

e Recruited three new members to the Board of Trustees through the Academy
Ambassadors with extensive experience .in ﬁnance and business at national
and international level and experience of si sq_rvmg 4trustees on trust boards

e Development of integrated and inclusive miechanisms across the Trust and in
our academies for strategic, educational, bysiness and financial planning.

e Strengthening of governance structures between the Board and local
governing bodies through the implemengation of a cohesive and effective
model of governance and enables the -trust’s educational, business and
financial plans to be effective.

¢ Identification, management and monitoring the risks that go with the potential
growth in the number of schools joining the Trust as well as increased
numbers of staff and pupils/students - be these risk financial, governance,
educational, health and safety or personnel related. The trustees have also
started to explore how partnerships with other local trusts may help to
mitigate risks and also provide opportunities for growth.

.,
W,
'7,’_;:'<‘.~

The trust has a Lead Officer for Governance and Policy Development, Julie Brasier
who is responsible with the CEO for leading the work of LGB clerks for each
academy ensuring that the trust’s Key Performance Indicators and mission, vision and
values are reflected in the setting of agenda items etc.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisation

CMAT procured services totalling £1,800 during the period from Pop-Up Foundation
Limited - a company in which Stephen Chamberlain (Chief Executive Officer of the
Trust) has been a director since March 2018. These services related to the delivery
and development of residential programmes in France for CMAT pupils and linking
CMAT academies to other schools and education provisions internationally that are

6



focused on developing learning outside the ¢lassroom in sustainable communities.
This was delivered at cost on a non-profit basis.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration for key management personnel
Trustees do not receive any remuneration for their role.

The pay of Key Management Personnel noted on page 3 (Executive Group) is
determined by the Board. The levels of pay are assessed in accordance with the
prevailing market rates and performance by the individuals.

Trade union facility time

No Challenger Multi-Academy Trust employees were relevant union officials during
their CMAT working time from 1 September 2018 — 31 August 2019.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects, Aims and Objectives

afize ¢+ The principal objeet and activity of the charitable.company is to advance for the
public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular by establishing,
maintaining, carrying on and developing an academy offering a broad curriculum.

¥ Objectlves Strategies and Activities h

¢ '~ The main objectives of the Trust during the - year ended 31st August 2019 are
§iendnd summitised belowsThe-Trust’s main stratequs enéeipassediin its missida-statement
w which is: i§

i El

T Mission: Our mission is to create a family offoutstanding schools where every young
& person has the opportunity to participate in efigaging and active learning experiences
ki that prepare them for the future and helps them aspire to achieve excellent educational

outcomes.

Vision: For all members of our community to embrace challenges in developing their
learning and expect excellence from themselves, each other, their schools and
communities.

Values
Leadership
Service
Creativity
Aspiration
Excellence

What we create:
e Successful learners, always with an eye on personal improvement.
e Effective contributors, with a clear vision of the future and their contribution to
it. '
e Confident individuals, able to face change and challenge with good character
and optimism.



e Responsible citizens —always willing to take and make opportunities for
development

What makes us different: »

- e A focus on & commitment to ‘Learning Outside the Classroom’.
e The development and measurement of Leadership & Character as part of the
e ‘Challenger Diploma’. '

Our Approach to School Improvement

The Trust now has five Key Indicators of Performance (KPIs) under pinned by a
range of objectives. The fifth KPI has been added for 2019/20. The five KPIs are:

KPI 1: Ensure the best possible educational outcomes at academies within the trust. KPI
2: Develop the quality of leadership, learning & teaching within the trust.

KPI 3: Develop the challenger diploma to promote leadership, and the behaviour,
safety & well-being of our learners.

KPI 4: Grow the size of the trust in line with the CMAT strategic plan

KPI 5: Ensure the long term sustdinability of the Trust in order to continue to deliver a

great education for our children

All our academies will work within our ethos and values using self-evaluation and

review- supported by a bespoke team of educational professionals and partnerships to :§

assure the governors and the Trust that each academy is operating effectively.
Our s¢hool improvement stratégy;:hzisms'i}iﬁ‘ii'ey strands; o
1. Effective Leadership and Governance

2. High Quality Teaching and Leaining

3. Supportive and Engaging Learning Environments

4. Curriculum for the Future

5. Community Engagement

6. The Challenger Diploma

Public Benefit

In setting the Trust’s objectives and planning its activities, the Trustees have given
careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit.
The principal activity of the Trust is to advance, for the public benefit, education in
the United Kingdom by establishing, maintaining, operating and developing schools
offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

The trust has been part of the DfE’s MAT Development Programme worked in
partnership with the STEP Academy Trust. As a result a new operating model was
developed which is now become embedded in the way the trust delivers on its mission
vision and values.

ey



Strategic Report

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

The trust has seen significant achievements this year in both outcomes and
opportunities for young people. Across all the primary academies within the trust
there is a four-year trend of significant improvement in outcomes:

1. EYFSGLD

¢ Lancot Challenger Academy has improved from 73%-76% between 2016 &
2019 (3% improvement)

e Springfield Primary School from 69%-76% between 2016-2019 (7%
improvement)

e The Westborough School from 62% -73% between 2016 & 2019 (11%
improvement)

This is an improvement average of 7% overall for CMAT academies over the
last four years in Good Leyels of Development in Early Years Foundation Stagé
“Zatid at 75% GLD for the frust is 4% better than thé¢fiational average of 71% in™
2018.

2. Phonics - . LL
¢ Lancot Challenger Academy has 1mproved from. 76% 92% between 2016 &

TR 9019 (16% improvément) T ot
o Sprmgﬁeld Primary School from 60%-86% between 2016-2019 (26% ‘
improvement) ' i 3
e The Westborough School from 62% -73% between 2016 & 2019 (11%
improvement) t '3

This is an improvement average of 18% overall for CMAT academies over the
last four years in Phonics and at 84% for the trust is 2% higher than the

- national average of 82% in 2018. Improvements at Lancot and Springfield are
significantly faster than improvement nationally over the same period.

3. Key Stage 1

e Lancot Challenger Academy has improved from 72%-75% in Reading, 44%-
73% in Writing and 72%-82% in maths between 2016 & 2019

e Springfield Primary School has improved from 60%-76% in Reading, 62%-
63% in Writing and 61%-75% in maths between 2016 & 2019

e The Westborough School dipped slightly from 70%-69% in reading but
improved in Writing 60%-64% and in maths 67%-73% between 2016 & 2019

For 2019 KS1 results CMAT academies exceeded the national average in maths
at 77% (National 76%) and is just below national in Reading at 73% (National 75%)
and Writing at 66% (National 69%)

This represents an average 2% improvement in Reading, 11% improvement in

9
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writing and 8% improvement in maths between 2016 and 2019 atross CMAT
academies. Lancot Challenger Academy outcomes in RWM exceeded the national
figures for all three areas in 2019.

4. Key Stage 2

e Lancot Challenger Academy has improved from 19%-68% RWM between
2016 & 2019 (49% improvement)

e Westborough School has improved from 46%-57% between 2016-2019 (11%
improvement)

¢ Hadleigh Junior School from 51% -62% between 2016 & 2019 (11%
improvement)

Overall there has been a 23% improvement in Key Stage 2 results across all 4
CMAT primary academies between 2016 and 2019

5. Secondary Key Stage 4

Average Progress 8.across both secondary academies from the provisional 2019 data
= -0.3.This is an improvement on -0.6 in 2018. CMAT average result here is well
below national (0.0).

Kempston Challenger Academy ' <

KCA Progress® score:df -0.2 reflects a significant improvement from 2017 (-0.7) but
is slight lower than 2018(-0.1) and significantly closer to the national avérage. .

i t :

The Attainment:8 score has moved from 38.9 to 39.6 which is still below national
(46.5) but improving. The English and Maths Basics (Grade 4-9) hasrisen to 48%
(2% improvemént/National 64%) and Grades 5-8 to 25% (3% improvément/National
43%). The new¥curriculum model is aspiration in terms of EBacc Subjécts with 42%
of the cohort completing a full Ebacc suite of qualifications compared to the national

figure of 32% with the average point score of 3.36 getting closer to the national of
4.04

The Deanes

The Progress 8 score of -0.9 reflects the significant challenge the school continues to
face in terms of high mobility, small cohorts and the demands of the new curriculum.
The score remains the same as in 2018 but if the small cohort of students who were
either persistently absent, unable to attend due to medical issues or were under the
care of youth justice are removed the score rises to -0.6

The Attainment 8 score has improved from 32.7 to 36. 4 which is still below national
(46.5) but improving. The English and Maths Basics (Grade 4-9) has risen to 49%
(12% 1mprovement/National 64%) but Grades 5-8 dropped from 22% to 15%
(National 43%) reflecting the cat that this cohort had a high proportion of low prior
attaining students.

1. Kempston Challenger Academy Post 16 Results
At KS5 the pass rate in Year 13 in 2019 is 98%. This is a significant improvement

10



from 90% in 2018, 88% in 2017 and 82% in 2016 when the academy opened.

Key Performance Indicators

Recent Ofsted reports indicate the positive impact that the trust’s strategies for
schools improvement and wider mission, vision and values are impacting positively
on raising standards. Ofsted reports from 2018 and 2019 state:

e The Challenger Multi-Academy Trust (CMAT) has provided a suitable degree
of support and challenge to help the school achieve its good overall
effectiveness.

Leaders, managers and governors have successfully transformed this
previously underperforming school when it opened into one which is now
effective, particularly over the last 12 months. This is a school that continues
to improve.

e The support of CMAT has contributed to the school’s rapid improvement.
This has included working with the school’s leaders to present achievement
data in a more user friendly way and making it a more helpful tool for raising
standards, and providing effective coaching for the headteacher.

e CMAT’s decision to replace the governing body with new members has
improved this aspect of the school’s leadership. Governors have carried out an

. audit of their existing skills, and are seeking to appoint someone with
experience of diversity as a result of this. ¢

e The trust’s. chief executive officer (CEO) and local govéming body (LGB)
provide an appropriate level of challenge and support to: school leaders The
‘trust has made good use of external support to aid 1mprovement

J The Challenger Multi-Academy Trust provides an appropriate balance of
support and challenge to senior leaders. The trust has ensured that it has used
its ‘central staff and external consultants to provide supportio develop leaders’
skills and improve the quality of teaching, learning and assessment. For
example, external consultants have validated assessments and provided helpful
advice for teachers of English, mathematics and science. The trust has used an
external consultant to provide support for the LGB, enabling it to be
increasingly effective in its role.

e The recently appointed chair of the trust board brings a wealth of relevant
experience to the role. He has quickly gained an accurate view of the
improvements made by the school, the challenges that it still faces, and the
support needed to maintain the rate of improvement. The CEO of the trust
visits the school regularly to check on senior leaders’ progress towards
achieving their priorities and the targets set by the trust. He has also supported
new senior leaders as they have grown into their roles.

e Leaders, the LGB and staff share the trust’s vision and ambition for the
school. Leaders and the chair of the LGB are clear about how their
improvement plans will achieve the trust’s aims.

The trustees continue to develop the Key Performance Indicators of the Trust.

Educational standards are challenging but realistic targets have been established and
agreed at each of the academies.

11



* Broad KPIs for 2019/20 are: ;

At least 75% of Early Years Foundation Stage chlldren achieve a good level of
development (National 71%)

At least 68% of pupils meet national Key Stage 2 expectations in reading,
writing and maths (National 65%)

55% of pupils achieve 9-4 grades in English and Maths GCSE (National 64%).
Secondary academies average a Progress 8 score of at least between -0.25-
+0.25.

Positive Post-16 value added in all secondary academies.

Outcomes demonstrate that gaps in achievement and progress for Pupil
Premium, SEND and other vulnerable groups are closing rapidly. 100% of
pupils and students are engaged in activities that count towards achieving the
Challenger Diploma at various levels.

The trust has furthered strengthened Finance and Operations by the appointment of a
new Chief Financial Officer and Finance and Operations Manager to assist in
: improving these aspects of the work of the trust and to help ensure further savings and
&, efficiencies, strengthen .financial accountability ands.to. support the trust through
“ challenging circumstances. Both are highly skilled, qualified accountants with

~ relevant experience at a large professional services firm.

. . Kempston Challenger Federation #f:

1

... CMAT :operates three.academies in close proximity-in.theBedfordshire. town.ef.. ..

. 3al
il

T AN S

1 Kempston. They are: Kempston Challenger Academy (Secondary - formerly Robert

4 Bruce Middle School & Hastingsbury Business and ¥Enterprise College), Daubeney

f‘ Academy (Secondary - formerly Daubeney Middle School) and Springfield
3% Academy (Primary - formally Springfield Lower S‘bhool) In order to ensure the

# financial stability and efficiency of all three schools asithey begin to grow their pupils
numbers the trust has formed a federation across the three schools for September
2019. The rationale for this is:

The total number of students across the two secondary academies for 2018/19
indicates there are sustainable pupil numbers working through over the next
few years and if, maintained provide a sound basis for Key Stage 4 and Key
Stage S provision in the town. As KCA has small numbers working through in
KS3 it is vital that retention at Daubeney helps to sustain Daubeney and
provide the foundations for uptake and breadth at KS4 and post 16:

The proposal accepted by the CMAT board was to:

Establish and market a Kempston Federation of the three academies under a
new ‘CMAT Kempston Academies Federation’ as an all through model,;
Develop an all through curriculum model across the three academies that can
be marketed as an innovative and unique EYFS to post-16 provision
underpinned by the CMAT Character/learning outside the classroom USP;
Establish an Executive leadership model for the Federation with three
Headteachers/Heads of School with a CMAT Executive Leader;

12
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+ Establish a Federation Executive Governing Board to support the strategic
leadership of the Federation;
This proposal ensures that:

* Both KCA and Daubeney are sustainable in the short/medium term;

¢ The federation will increase capacity within the two academies to achieve

© higher standards, providing: improved teaching and learning;

« There is a more structured way for the academies to collaborate, learn from

each other and share best practice;

To support this the trust has recruited a highly experienced and skilled Executive
Principal to lead the new Federation who also has experience in a large MAT. Each
academy now has a Head of School who are line managed by the new Executive
Principal. New posts in addition to Specialist Leaders of Education and Lead
Practitioners have also been created to allow curriculum work and equality of
opportunity across the academies.

The trust has developed a number of significant educational opportunities for children
and young people at our academies. Notable successes this year have included:

o Character..Development: The furtheu;c development of the .;Challenger
Diploma at all our academies linked into individual rewards programmes and
the ethos of the academies. Over the last two years our academies have
received visits from former Minister ofj §tate Lord Nash to see the diploma

. activities and the financial entrepreneurshlp programme being delivered at

Fe. primary level.and from Secretary of State for Educatlon Nicky Morgan, MP

©opE. --to see the. suecess of the Daubeney ‘CoIours Pprogramme and attend.a work

ey
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shop on ‘Character and Self-Esteem’ lifked to mental health and well-being
delivered in partnership with the Icarus ‘Trust. This year Lancot Challenger
Academy received a visit from restauratéur and TV presenter Prue Leith who
spent a day at the academy looking at\.’ how Character education has been
embedded at the school but also, by meetmg with CMAT Ambassadors from
across the Bedford cluster how this is a key feature of success in all CMAT
academies. This has been recognised as a strength by Ofsted in reports in
2018 and in 2019 and exemplifies the impact this approach can have on
personal development, social and moral capital and inclusion:-

‘The ethos of the trust is to develop ‘learning outside the classroom’. Leaders
have ensured that the ‘Challenger Diploma’ provides pupils with structured
opportunities for activities that support the development of challenge,
motivation, achievement and teamwork. Pupils have opportunities to pursue
and develop their personal interests through a range of overseas trips, sports
activities, musical and drama performances and cultural visits.” Ofsted 2018

“The school’s work supports pupils to be self-confident and to develop
strength of character. This is well exemplified by the fortnightly ‘challenger’
lessons. Leaders know it is difficult for some pupils to stay after school, but
they want everyone to have lots of interesting experiences. Leaders therefore
timetable these innovative sessions during the school day. In these sessions,
pupils learn about topics such as mountain biking, sign language and archery.
In other lessons, assemblies and events, pupils find out about many different
features of society and the world. There are plenty of things for pupils to get

13



involved with. For example, there are theatre trips and yoga classes, and trips
to France and to the Himalayas. Pupils get the opportunity to debate ideas, to
hear from visitors and to learn a wide range of new skills, including first aid’.
Ofsted 2019

The second CMAT Character Awards were held and saw teachers, support
staff and pupils from all seven academies brought together to celebrate the
character attributes of:

o Nurture- those who support others;

o Working together- those who thrive as part of a team;

o Success- those who persistently demonstrate courage and resilience
o Aspire-those who embrace challenge and have high aspirations

This was a highly successful evening and exemplified to our stakeholders the
values of the trust.

The trust also introduced the first programme of Action Research in the
classroom. Led by Seb Sagnia, staff from all seven academies supported by
‘Frederika Roberts and paralympidn "Elizabeth Wright#gtthors of ‘Character
toolkit for Teachers’ began a programme of research into the impact of how
character attributes in the classroom could improve outcomes for pupils. The
research was then edited and published in a document and launched at an
event held at Westminster Clty School in front of representatives from a range
of trusts, the Chartered College of Teachmg, the DfE Character Education

'“"Wo‘erg Party, Challenge” Partners diid-others. ‘Researcli‘t“plcs iicluded:

o Will 5 minutes smgmg at the beginning of the school day increase a
child’s mental wellbemg‘?

o What is the effect of leachmg encouragement on children effectiveness
in carrying out group problem solving activities?

o Can regular character education activities improve emotional literacy
skills and the understanding of character strengths in early years
children?

o Will teaching Year 7 about resilience during citizenship lessons
increase their levels of resilience?

o Can confidence in mathematics be improved by embedding character
education in the teaching and learning of the subject?

Expeditions Programme: The CMAT Expeditions programme saw three cross
academy leadership expedition programmes to France, Italy and the Himalayas
where children undertook individual and group leadership challenges in skiing,
dog mushing, abseiling, white-water rafting, bushcraft and a trek across the
Himalayas.

Our second Himalayas trip again saw Year 11 students from The Deanes in
‘Essex and sixth form students from Kempston Challenger Academy, Bedford
undertake a two week expedition to India and including not only the trek across
the Himalayas and visits to iconic world heritage sites such as the Taj Mahal
but also visits to local villages and orphanages as part of the leadership and
service challenge. Evaluations show that all these trips have had a significant
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impact on the future aspirations of all the participating students.

¢ Leadership and Management: The trust has introduced a Leadership
Programme for students from Year 5-13 that is accredited by the Chartered
Management Institute (CMI), ASDAN and World Leadership Academy. Upon
completion in the sixth form, students can achieve the ‘CMI Award in Team
Leading’ (Year 12) and the ‘CMI Award in First Line Management’ which
leads toward Chartered Manager status with CML

e Curriculum: The trust has been innovative in supporting new approaches to the
curriculum. This has been particularly notable at Lancot where, following on
from the ‘Shelved” project in 2018 which saw every child in the academy write
a book for the new Lancot Digital Library, a whole series of additional
“WOW?” events such as ‘This is Me, ‘London Calling’ and ‘Work of HeART’
involved pupils in highly creative and innovative curriculum projects which
underline the new focus in the Ofsted framework on the curriculum and its
aspirations.

e Other activities that worked across the Trust were collaboration in the Peter
Jones Foundation Enterprise project; The Brilliant Club and Lancot’s!
Curriculum Design work. “*°

Going Concern * - .
The Trustees have considered,both the short and longer term financial projections:;
“and~Gther risks that may affect the Trust. They have considered the key risks that ™
could negatively impact the going concern of the Trust and have considered the .?
budget and forecast, cash flow-projections and financial recovery plan over the period :+
to December 2020. It is recogr@sed that Challenger Multi Academy Trust remains in a
recovery phase after the restructuring during 2018/19. A key element of the ™
restructuring is the reduction nécessary in staff costs across the Trust. From 1 January "
2019 the Trust began delivering the targeted savings, which equate to over £1m
annually. This plan is set to return the Trust to a sustainable financial position, running

a surplus by 2022/23. However, during 2019/20 the Trust is forecasting a deficit
position which has been reported in the budget submitted to thé ESFA, albeit
representing a reduced deficit position from the 2018/19 actual outturn.

As outlined in ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties’ the key area of uncertainty is pupil
numbers. The Trust is forecasting moderate growth in pupil numbers over the next 5
years, however, if the Trust’s pupil numbers were to decrease, this would present a
significant challenge financially.

The Board have considered several factors when forming their conclusion as to
whether the use of the going concern basis is appropriate when preparing these
financial statements. These include:

- Regularly reviewing the 5 year recovery plan to ensure the Trust remains on

target with its financial targets.

- Recognising that significant savings have already been implemented and the

Trust is in a healthier financial position than 12 months earlier.

- Reviewing the current cash balance and both long- and short-term forecasts

- Recognising that the Trust has the support from the Education and Skills

15

P LN b



Cem LTS et
Wil

Funding Agency as demonstrated by the loan repayment delay to September
2021.

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation
that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW i
Financial report for the year

The Trust’s total incoming resources for the year to 31 August 2019 amounted to
£18,655,888 which was primarily from ESFA and local authority pupil funding as well as
grant funding for school improvement, start-up and environment improvement. The Trust
held fund balances, including fixed assets of £42,579,121 (2018: £46,060,029) at 31
August 2019. As at 31 August 2019, the Trust held unrestricted reserves of £629,715
(2018: £510,113). Full results for the year are shown on page 33.

The results for the year have been significantly impacted by restructuring costs of £677,845
(2018: £2500), which were incurred as part of a financial recovery plan to secure the long-
term financial stability of the Trust. The Trust has begun to realise the targeted staff costs
savings, of around £1million annually, and is planned to deliver a financial surplus by
2022/23.

When considering the Trust’s underlying revenue reserves position at 31 August
2019, removing the s}mpact of movements in pension liabilities, which do ot require full
settlement in the short.term, and fixed assets held by the Trust, the Txgust, had, deficit
revenue reserves of £2,453,337 at 31 August 2019 (2018: deficit of £1 ,031 343)

RS (@
Underlying Reserves table : .
©$ -~ ;31 R
B 2019 2018 ...
; : ¢
Total Reserves 2; 42,579,121 46,060,029:‘
¥ f._,{
i
Less: fixed asset festricted fund (53,706,458) (53,501,372);
Add: Pension reserve _ 8,674,000 6,410,000
Total revenue reserves exc pension (2,453,337) (1,031,343)
Being:
Restricted revenue reserves (3,083,052) (1,541,456)
Unrestricted revenue reserves 629,715 510,113
Total (2,453,337) (1,031,343)

Reserves Policy

The Trust is largely funded by grants from the Department for Education, the use of
which is regulated by its Funding Agreement. The Trust’s total reserves of
£42,579,121 comprise unrestricted revenue funds of £629,715, restricted revenue funds
of (3,083,052), pension reserve of (£8,674,000), and restricted fixed asset funds of
£53,706,458 at 31 August 2019. The Trustees have set a target of holding free
reserves equating to £250,000-£500,000 which represents over 3 months of central
Trust expenditure, in order to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays
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between spending and receipt of funding and to provide resources to deal with
unexpected emergencies. Central Trust reserves are then available for supporting
existing academy deficits and unexpected cash flow requirements at the academies
and within the central Trust. Alongside this, the Trust continues to adopt the approach
of reducing and removing acquired structural deficits at "academies in a short
timeframe post acquisition. Currently, free reserves do not represent the targeted
level, largely as a result of the early stage development of the Trust and the financial
difficulty the Trust entered in to. However, as outlined in ‘Going Concern’, the Trust
is following a 5 year recovery plan to improve its financial position including
unrestricted reserves.

The local government pension scheme liabilities are recognised in the accounts as a
significant deficit within restricted funds of £8,674,000. However, this does not mean
there is an immediate liability for the total amount, rather the balance reflects the
potential for increases in employer contributions in future years.

Investment Policy

K g
The trustees are required to approve any financial invesgments prior to purchase. As
thevTrust:is still in a periodiof recovery, there are currenilyno financial investments:+
Any future investments entered in to will enable the Trust to make good use of
surplus ‘funds, whilst maintaining adequate account balances to meet cash flow
ﬂuctuatlons The principal con51derat10n will be the minimisation of risk.

1P u‘

Prnncnpal RlSkS and Uncertamtles B L

Tbe Trust s principal risks have been identified and a rlsk reglster developed to
mltlgate these risks. The Finance, Risk and Audit Comn%lttee review the risk register
01;1 a regular basis. “

il il

The Trust continues to develop and embed the system of internal controls, including
financial, operational and risk management designed to protect the assets and
reputation of its academies and to assess new academies joining the Trust.

The key risks identified at present are as follows:

e Safeguarding — Executive Senior Management and the Trustees are very
focussed on the importance of safeguarding. The Trust operates carefully
controlled processes in relation to staff selection, child protection training and
policies, health and safety and discipline. We continue to regularly review
these aspects at each of our academies and hold safeguarding audits where
deemed necessary via an accredited external body. The Trust is reviewing
when to commence a programme of additional health and safety reviews at its
academies, with a view to implementing the British Safety Council 5*
programme at an appropriate stage of the Trust’s development.

Financial stability and growth — whilst the trustees consider that the Trust

remains a going concern, the Trust is still in a recovery phase as referred to in

the Strategic Report. Pupil number projections, a key determinant for income,

show overall growth in September 2020 and increasing numbers over the next

3-5 years. The Trust also continues to seek acquisitions to grow the number of

academies in the MAT as this will increase the available economies of scale
18
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and provide access to additional funding. The Trust is expanding its operations
to cover additional sites and additional provision and is conscious of the need
to maintain a strong focus on its core standards and to continue to develop
educational standards. This risk is mitigated in several ways, including the
development. of a well-defined expansion plan with clear objectives and
responsibilities and ensuring appropriate management and delivery resources
are in place when required.

e Reputational risk — the Trust has demonstrated with successful Ofsted
inspections that the approach to school improvement and our wider mission,
vision and values is effective in raising standards and aspirations. However,
with an increasing level of competition in its current markets, reputation is a
key factor in the future success of the MAT. Safeguarding, quality of service
and results and parental and pupil feedback are very important parts of this
reputation. Adverse publicity is likely to impact the rate of growth of the Trust
in terms of pupil numbers, acquiring further academies and financial
performance.

Charity Fundraising ;

{

+% "Fundraising at Challenger'Multi Academy Trust is ari'%ifﬁpdrfént but modest part of the

operation of the Trust, comprising less than 0.5% of total income. Fundraising is
usually undertaken by volunteer groups of parents orthrough school activities such as
a Christmas Fair. There are. no professional fundraié’{txg organisations used and so no
manitoring processes are required. The Trust has got subscribed to the Fundraising
Regulator but adheres to the Code of FundraiSing _Rrjlggtice when undertaking

- fuddisising activity. Théré were no complaints fé(féji'\"?éff 'Bjy"the Trust in relation to

fundraising activity. -}

PLANS FOR FUTURE YEARS

As a result of the restructuring of the central function of the Trust, a number of roles
have been created with existing senior leaders. The central staff has been thinned to
the CEO, CFO, and a senior financial officer with cross Trust functions held by senior
leaders within the existing schools and the creation of the Kempston Federation.

The Chief Executive, Stephen Chamberlain, left the Trust on 31 October 2019 after 5
years, to take up a similar role in another, larger Trust. The Trust has appointed a new
Chief Executive, Roy Blackwell, who joins in January 2020. Roy Blackwell joins us
after a distinguished spell as Chief Executive of the United Westminster and Greycoat
Foundation.

In the interim the Chair, Frank Green, has stepped aside and taken on the role of Chief
Executive and Accounting Officer until Roy Blackwell joins us. Peter Knell has
taken over the role of Chairman in the meantime.

The vision of the Trust remains the same, but we are seeking to strengthen the Trust

by building stronger links with other Trusts with a similar vision to our own, in
addition to seeking other individual partner schools to join.
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AUDITOR

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

e there is no relevant audit information of which the chantable company’s
auditor is unaware, and

e the Trustees have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and establish that the
charitable company’s auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating the Strategic Report, was approved by the
trustees on 18 December 2019 and signed for and on their behalf by:

Ml

Peter Knell ;
Chall‘ OfBQ,daYd "'V;s". . .v..r,g‘!-u
18 December 2019
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Governance Statement
Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we -acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The
Challenger Multi Academy Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control,
financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of
both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The
Challenger Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are
also responsible for reporting to the Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in
internal control.

Governance <

¥ o £ e At SEYes
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the
Trustees’ Report and in the Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities.
The Board has formally met 8 timesiduring the year in full session. Attendance during
the year at meetings of the Board was as follows. During. 2018/19 the Board

- - subsumedsthe role of standards committee and-finance; risk and-awdit committee.

W
‘e

Trustee Meetihgs attended Out of a possible

b

Zarna Banerjee

Sarah Brown

Peter Knell

Stephen Chamberlain

Nick Palazzo-Corner
Andrew Urbanek
Sally Dicketts

Frank Green

Emma Reade

N[O (O—[O|0[(R|~|n
Dol (W N]|oco|co ||

John Revill

Governance review

The Board continues to assess the skill set of its existing Trustees and the need to
increase the number of Trustees to ensure the right balance of skills and experience
are in place to sustain the planned growth. Part of this evaluation includes regular
assessment of training needs for Trustees and the addition of sub-committees as the
Trust expands.

In addition the Board regularly reviews its own effectiveness and the quality of data it
21



receives. To improve both elements, during 19/20 the Board is implementing a
standard board pack for each school to complete on a termly basis which will include
the key educational data and the trends within CMAT schools. This will enable the
board to quicker identify areas of concern and put in a remedial action plan.

Review of Value for Money

As- Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the
Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer
understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided
good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees
where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data
where available. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value
for money during the year by:
e Using an appreved Curriculum Led Financial Planning Tool to keep wstaffing
structures undérreview and deploy staff*éfficiently to support an improved
curriculum, or to target areas of the curriculum in need of development;

e Focusing on individual pupils: managing the differing needs of pupils, such as
those requiring, one. -0 one support, and those requiring more stretch and
challenge; . - o g :;, L

N '_i e - syl e : U RERE S

e Engaging with:.other educational providers and experts to share del.wery or
good practlce,:_;and to drive up standards for the least cost developmg shared
services acrossﬁhe Trust; i

3 3t

e Exploring possibilities to develop the Challenger Diploma model across all

Challenger academies;

¢ Developing a single reporting model for financial governance across the Trust
+ that allows strong oversight by the Trustees and Accounting Officer;

e Appraising and negotiating services and contracts to get the best mix of
quality and effectiveness for the least cost such as ICT and HR and
benchmarking these where appropriate;

¢ Running Cluster or Trust wide tender processes where appropriate to reduce
overall costs;

o Taken opportunities to work collaboratively with others to reduce and share
administration and procurement costs and to explore where staffing across

academies can reduce costs and achieve economies of scale; and

¢ Reviewing controls and managing risks: implementing a new purchase order
system to improve the financial controls for spending.
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- reviewed in detail once a year by the Trustees.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The

- system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and

prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy Trust policies, aims and objectives,
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in the Trust for the year ended 31
August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Trustees have reviewed the key risks to which the academy Trust is exposed
together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been
implemented to mitigate those risks. The governing body is of the view that there is a
formal on-going gprocess for identifying, evaluating and managing ghe Trust’s
significant risks that-has-been in place for the year ended 31 August 20}9+and up to
the date of approval of the-annual report and financial statements. This process is

B
ik
2 2

The Risk and Control Framework : - . : i

The Trust’s system of mtrernal financial control i§ based on a framework‘ of regular -

management infogmation and administrative procedures including the segregation of
duties and a systeljj;l of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:
4 d
. compreher‘gisive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annualybudget and
regular financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the:Accounting
Officer and the governing body;

e regular reviews by the Board of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase ‘plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guldehnes
delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
identification and management of risks.

The trustees have considered the need for a specific internal audit function and during
2018/19 tendered and appointed an internal auditor who commenced work in August
2019with a specifically agreed scope and program to ensure key risk and processes
are reviewed in further depth on a rotational basis. All internal and external audit
reports will be shared with the Board.
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Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review
has been informed by: :

o the work of the Chief Financial Officer, who was appointed in December 2018
to reduce the costs of the Trust’s central resources and further enhance the
internal control framework;

o the work of the external auditor;

e the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and

e the work of the executive managers within the academy Trust who have
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework.

Approved by order of the members of the governing body on. 18 December 2019 and

51gned on its behalf by 3
Yoo FIS S %,&—l. - ala . .
PeteE,Knell . . Frank Green, CBE :
Cham of CMAT Boatd AT Chief Executlve/Accountmg Ofticer
M. £
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Challenger Multi Academy Trust I have considered my
responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills
- Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance
with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the
funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of
the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material
irregular or improper use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance
with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust’s funding agreement
and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-
compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date
of this statément, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

Ji -
Erank Green, CBE & -
fAccountmg Officer . et g
g ies T - s s g LGS
,118 December 2019 i
'z’-
% gl
ii S
i
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities '

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the
Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under company law, the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the trustees are required to: ’

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
. » observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the
€ Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019

MEE » make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable andprudent
« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
'y .. toany material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
Q. =~ e prepare the financial statements :0n the going concern basis unless it is
5b o inappropriate to presume that the chagitable_qg;npany will continue in business

3 ﬁ;; Thetrustees aresresponsible for keeping adel‘guat‘e;ab‘ébunti‘rié' records that.are sufficient
Ty to show and explain the charitable company:s transactions and disclose with reasonable
3 accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them
3k to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable
company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements
both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for
ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees oni 18 December 2019 and
signed on its behalf by:

Tl

Peter Knell
Chair of Board

18 December 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of The Challenger Multi Academy
Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Challenger Multi Academy Trust for
the year ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities
(incorporating income and expenditure accounts), the Balance sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31
August 2019 and of its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
witiAccepted Accounting Practice, including the Académiies’ Accounts Direction 2018
to 2019 issued by the Education Funding Agency; and

« have been prepared in accg,idance with the requirements of the Companies Act 200”61

s E o sk

- Basis for opinion G

s gt e s A e s £y EEES R AP NN e e s g PR i
R Y TN AT TETHTS N WA e

We conducted our audit iniaccordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK)
(ISAs (UK)) and applicablefilaw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s¥responsibilities for the audit of the financial statem”énts
section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to "provide a basis for

our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

o the trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or

o the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the charitable company’s ability
to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Otherinformation \

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

oLar -

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion based on the work u;_,rjldertaken in the course of our audit

o the.information given in the trustees report, which includes the directors’ report

“dndvthe strategic report prepared -for: the Purposes of “company law, for the = 3

financial year for which the .financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

o the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the trustees’ report
have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report included within the
trustees’ report. We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and

returns; or
« certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement, the trustees (who are
29



also the ditectors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for.being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
1S a high Tlevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an Iaudlt conducted in
accordance.wnh ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement. when. it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered mater1a1 if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. -}

A further gescription of our responsibilities for the audit of the ﬁr;gnmal statements is
located on'the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: w w w frc.or g. uk/a ud1
torsrespcn_é ibilities. This-description-forms-part of our auditor’s: reportu T

% 5
Use of our ‘report ‘f

This repott is made solely to the charitable company’s members as a body, 1
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006j Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the charitable company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Nicola May

Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of
Crowe UK. LLP
Statutory Auditor

London

Date: 21 December 2019
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to The
Board of Challenger Multi Academy Trust and the Education Funding Agency
for the year ended 31 August 2019

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 August 2018 and
further to the requirements of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as
included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an
engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Challenger Multi Academy Trust during the period 1 September
2018 to 31 August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and
the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Challenger Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so
that we might state to Challenger Multi Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Challenger Multi
Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have
formed. : =

Respective responsibilities of Challenger Multi Academy Trust’s accounting
officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the..requirements of Challenger Multi

Academy Trust’s-funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 26
August 2015 angd:the. Academies Financial zHandboek extant from 1 September 2018,
for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and i 11)1come received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are -established in the United Kingdom by our
profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in
accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies
Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come to our
attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2018 to 31
August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the

financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter. The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to
perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide
us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
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Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
regularity and propriety of the academy trust’s income and expenditure. The work
undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes a review of the design and
implementation of the Academy’s internal controls and review processes on regularity,
supported by detailed tests on samples of costs incurred by the academy and specific
transactions identified from our review.

Conclusion

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all
material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1
September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.
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Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2019 ‘

{including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2019 2018
Funds Funds Funds Total Total
Note £ £ . £ £ £
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 39,652 10,000 1,532,088 1,581,740 108,703
Transfer from local authority on conversion - - - - 3,734,350
Charitable activities:
’ Funding for the Trust's 4 - 15,590,546 - 15,590,546 16,457,847
educational operations
Other trading activities 5 1,482,643 - - 1,482,643 1,279,253
Investments 6 959 - - 959 511
Total 1,523,254 15,600,546 1,532,088 18,655,888 21,580,663
Expenditure on:
Raising Funds 7 1,403,652 - - 1,403,652 1,171,951
Charitable Activities:
Academy trust educational operations 78 - 18,034,629 1,266,515 19,301,144 20,041,358
Total 7 1,403,652 18,034,629 1,266,515 20,704,796 21,213,309
Net income/ (expenditure) ’ 119,602 (2,434,082) 265,573 (2,048,908) 367,354
Transfers between funds 17 - - - - -
Other recognised gains / (iosses) .
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit i :
— pension schemes .'uia S .- 26 - (1,432,000) - (1,432,00()) ..1,272,000
Net movement in fundsiGy e 119,602 (3,866,082) 265,573 (3,480,908) 1,639,354
e e il D R Rt I T RN . JESTRENPREA S e
Reconciliation of funds jl }1'
Total funds brought forwaid 17 510,113 (7,951,456) 53,501,372 46,060,029 44,420,675
£l . 2]

FUNDS CARRIED FORWA;E'D 629,715  (11,817,538) 53,766,945 42,579,121 46,060,029

“e -

Al activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 August 2019

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due within
oneyear

Net current assets

Creditors: Amounts falling after more than
one year

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme Iiabilityy
Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust

Restricted funds

. Fixed asset fund-.. - .- L g

Restricted income fund
Pension reserve
Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note
12
13

14

15

16

17
17
17

17

2019 2018
£ £ £ £
66,151 - ' -
53,246,965 53,501,372
474,841 458,209
1,180,131 715,178
1,654,971 1,173,387
(1,505,575) {1,554,730)
149,397 (381,343)
(2,209,392) {650,000)
51,253,121 52,470,029
51,253,121 52,470,029
(8,674,000) (6,410,000)
42,579,121 46,060,029
<1
I¥N - .
]
a3 .
B
53,766,986« «x: ¢ - -53,501,372
(3,143,539) (1,541,456}
(8,674,000) {6,410,000)
41,949,405 45,549,916
629,715 510,113
42,579,121 46,060,029

Y
Company registration number: 09270040

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 18th December 2019 and are signed on their behalf by:

Frank Green
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows, \
for the Year Ended 31 August 2019 '

Notes 2019 2018
£ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 22 (1,999,934) {724,161)
Cash flows from investing activities 24 1,559,392 650,000
Cash flows from financing activities 23 905,495 (119,308)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period W -(193,—469)
Casl;| and cash equivalents at 1 September 2018 715,178 908,647
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2012 25 m W
i P
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Notes to the Financial Statements ' ‘
for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

1. AccountingPolicies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of The Challenger Multi Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard which is
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (Charities SORP (FRS102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Challenger Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS102.

Going Concern
The Trustees have considered both the short and longer term financial projections and other risks that may affect the
Trust. They have considered the key risks that could negatively impact the going concern of the Trust and have considered
the budget and forecast, cashflow projections and financial recovery plan over the period to December 2020. It
is recognised that Challenger Multi Academy Trust remains in a recovery phase after the restructuring during 2018/19. A
key element of the restructuring is the reduction necessary in staff costs across the Trust. From 1 january 2019 the
. Trust began delivering the targeted savings, which equate to over £1m annually. This plan is set to return the Trust to a
e sustainable financial position, running a surplus by 2022/23. However, during 2019/20 the Trust is forecasting a deficit
M position which has been reported in the budget submitfdd to the ESFA, albeit representing a reduced deficit position from &
the 2018/19 actual outturn. B

As outlined in ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainties’ the key area of uncertainty is pupil numbers. The Trust is forecasting
moderate growth in pupil numbers over the next 5 years, however, if the Trust’s pupil numbers were to decrease, this
would present a significant challenge financially. 1

.y K

The Board have considered several factors when forming their conclusion as to whether the use of the going concern o

basis is appropriate when preparing these financial staterﬁents_. Theseinclude:

- Regularly reviewing the 5 year recovery plan to ensuréthe Trust rém3ains on target with its financial targets.

L ;351’3:_!;3:__'- - - Recognising that significant savings have already been implemented ‘:i\ljgthe Trustis ina healthier financial position than
12 months earlier. " T

: -~

- Reviewing the current cash balance and both long- and,s.hort-term forecasts. I
- Recognising that the Trust has the support from the Education and Skills Funding Agency as demonstrated by the loan )
repayment delay to September 2021. - —

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
e adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt
v the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. No estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year have beenidentified.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
{income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the fatest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March
2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the
pension liability.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, receipt is probable and the amount
can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Grants i

Grants receivable are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the year is shown in the relevant funds on the batance sheet.
Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income. Where the entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant in particular is recognised in full in the year for which it is receivable and any unspent amount is

reflected in the restricted fund. Any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital
grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is
entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the statement of financial
activities in the year in whichitis receivable.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Otherincome
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Trust is recognised in the statement of financial activities
as incoming resources and resources expended at their estimated value to the Trust in the period in which they are
receivable and where the benefit is both quantifiable and measurable. This is with the exception of where the gift in kind
was a fixed asset in which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the
useful economic life in accordance with the Trust's policies.
i

i . e Sy,
Transfer on conversion e
Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to
the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within Donations and capital
grantincome to the net assets received.

Interest receivable -
Interest receivable is included within the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis.
B N e T e Ae el

sraat,

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once thereisa legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it
is probable that a transfer of e¢onomic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity  are allocated directly. to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support
costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent
wilh the use  of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure onraising funds X
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Noteés to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and
the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Inatangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are
subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line
basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Purchased computer software 3years

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangibie fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision forimpairment. .

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the
private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants
are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance
Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of
Financial Activities. .

B 7
:Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets underjconstruction, at rates

oo fcalculated to write off the cost of each asset on,a straight line basis over its expected useful life, as follgws: cvze
Freehold & leasehold buildings S0years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3years
L. Computerhardware . 3years o

it sy
-Assets in- the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not. charged un-.ll they are

palrment-ofeu fixed asset is- camed cut if events or changes in circumstances malcake that th arrying: -
Oalue of any fixed asset may not be recoverable Shortfalls between the carrying value of fnxed assets and their
ecoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the'Statement of Financial
“Activities.

A

Liabnlmes

[

*aLIablhtleS are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable
that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated
wreliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the

amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past.event
which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges. .
Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 August 2019

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

creditors

The Challenger Multi Academy Trust has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial

instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method. Financial assets held at amortised cost comprise cash and bankand in
Cash at bank

amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

w

hand, together with trade and other debtors. Financial liabilities held at amortised cost comprise trade and other
Taxation

&

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
I
is classified as a basic financial instruments and is measured at face value
)
1

liabilities at amortised cost of £304,187 (2018: £1,206,820)

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments and are measured at
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or other financial instrument
I
y

amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments

‘5,
-

]
A

. @

At the balance sheet date the Trust held financial assets at amortised cost of £1,370,482 (2018: £1,052,752) and financial

extent that such income or gains‘are applied exclusively to chantable purposes.

re

-

it

The Challenger Multi Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
Pensions Benefits
Teachers’ Pension Scheme B

)

-

2011 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the

Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by

Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporat:on Tax Act 2011 or Section 256 of the Taxat:on of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the

year.

(TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). These are defined benefit schemes.
1

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academies Enterprise Trust are pravided by the Teacher's Pension Scheme

valuations using a prospective benefit method. As stated in note 26, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the Trust is
Local Government Pension Scheme

eton
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and conmbutuons are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees'

vi

u'l\
working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantlally level percentage of current and future
pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quinquénnial

The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each

Fund Accounting

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate trustee administered
costs as incurred Net interest on the defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
i

funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality
scheme assets is recognised in other gains and losses.

corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
I

and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, setttements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff

Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
of the Trust at the discretion of the governors

I
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount

the benefit obligations The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other gains and losses.
the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the ESFA  where
funder/donor and include grants from the ESFA and Department for Education,

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants with restrictions imposed by the
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.2 Events after the end of the reporting period

There were no significant events after the reporting period that affect the ability of users to evaluate the accounts.

3. Donations and capital grants
Unrestricted Restricted 2019
Funds Funds £
£ £
Capital grants - 1,532,088 1,532,088
Donations : 39,652 10,000 49,652
39,652 1,542,088 1,581,740

2018

55,765
52,938

108,703

Tr;e income from donations and capital grants was £1,581,740 (2018: £108,703) of which £39,652 was unrestricted {(2018: £52,938) and £1,532,088 was

restricted fixed asset funds (2018: £55,765).

4. Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations
Unrestricted Restricted TOTAL
Funds Funds 2019
£ £ £
DfE / ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 13,288,093 13,288,093
N Start Up grants . - 16,333 16,333
v Pupil premium - 994430 994,430
e e Other DfE / ESRAgEants S EIR 091,678 291,678
’ - 14,590,534 14,590,534
Other Government grants
Local authority grants - 757,241 : 757,241
: LA Pupil Premium - 53,325 53,325
. Special educational projects - - -
PO . Other government grants § 122,070 - 122,070 ~
<~ PR TN Lo e 932,636 932,636
N =" Other incomé’ffd‘rc;l:;he dcademy trust's o "" e wESTAL e - e -
? : educational operations - E : 67,376 67,376
1 3
" -7 15,590,546 15,590,546

£16,457,847). . =
&

5. Other trading activities

Unrestricted
Funds
£

Lettingincome 104,973
Sports Centre income 572,452
Cateringincome R 223,230
School trips 164,994
Uniforms 5,752
Music 8,743
Otherincome 402,499

1,482,643

Restricted TOTAL
Funds . 2019
£ £
- 104,973
- 572,452
- 223,230
- 164,994
- 5,752
- 8,743
- 402,499

. 1,482,643

Total
2018

- 13,012,097
41,333
1,044,243
423,886

14,521,559
1,416,914
59,921

149,768
1,626,603

309,685

16,457,847

The income from funding for the Academy Trust's educational ope@tions was £15,590,546 (2018: £16,457,847) of which £15,590,546 was restricted (2018:

Total
2018
£

110,829
543,199
200,094
139,974
6,467
6,571
272,120

1,279,253

Other income consists of sales of other goods and services of £36,856 (2018: £33,957); Insurance claims of £217,910 (2018: £20,000); Supply teacher
insurance income of £0 (2018: £13,092); Staff‘services - consultancy income of £16,353 (2018: £47,886); and other income of £131,380 (2018: £164,436).

The income from other trading activities was £1,482,643 (2018: £1,279,253) of which £1,482,643 was unrestricted (2018: £1,279,253).
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investmentincome

Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds 2019
£ £ £
Bank Interest t 959 - 959
959 - 959
The investment income was £959 (2018: £511) of which £959 was unrestricted (2018: £511).
Expenditure
Staff costs Non Pay Expenditure Total
Premises Other 2019
£ £ £ £ -
Expenditure on raising funds
* Direct and allocated support costs 468,821 64,173 870,658 1,403,652
Academy’s educational operations
* Direct costs 11,398,088 18,780 746,195 12,163,062
* Allocated support costs 2,893,814 2,309,419 1,934,848 7,138,082
14,760,723 2,392,372 3,551,701 20,704,796

The expenditure on raising funds was £1,403,652 (2018: £1,171,951) of which £1,403,652 was unrestricted (2018: £1,171,951).

Net {income)/expenditure for the year includes:
-8,
Operating leasg rentals

Depreciation.83% <7~ . “660. .

Impairment
Fees payable to auditor

o

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

wit

[6R
7 S S, ST
Ex-gratia payments e
i

2z,
Charitable activities
Lé:
{
Direct costs -,‘éducational operations
Support costst.educational operations

2019
@
80829
.802,579

2,548
41,900

ar

Li!i‘
Total %
£ Amount (£)

Reason
. 1 e
11,770

it

P

2019
£

12,163,062
7,138,082

19,301,144

,@,11,770 Retention payﬁnént

2018

511

511

Total
2018

1,171,951

13,141,870
6,899,488

21,213,309

2018
£
706,664
600,256
79,165

Individual items above £5,000

2018
£
13,141,870
6,899,488

20,041,358

The expenditure on charitable activities was £19,301,144 (2018: £20,041,358) of which £nil was unrestricted (2018: £nil), £18,485,335 was restricted (2018:
£18,734,348) and £815,809 was restricted fixed assets (2018: £1,306,920).

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairment

Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

2,893,814
802,579
13,230

2,458 .
244,647
1,504,382

1,629,206
47,765
7,138,082

41

2,165,025
706,664
600,256
338,534
878,289

2,114,674

96,046

6,899,488
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10.

Staff costs '

a. Staff costs during the period were:

2019
£
Wages and salaries 10,740,588
Social security costs 1,077,830
Pension costs 1,893,744
13,712,162
Agency staff costs 370,715
Staff restructuring costs 677,845
14,760,723
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 616,345
Severance payments 61,500
677,845

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

2018
£

11,458,878
1,087,727
1,944,333

14,490,938
262,762

2,500
14,756,201

2,500
2,500

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £54,000 (2018: £2,500). Individually the payments were

£19,000, £12,000, £10,000, £7,000, £6,000.

¢. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year ended 31 August 2019 was as follows:

2019
No.
Teachers canEd
Administration and support
Management
o EN .
.d. Higher paid staff . ] -
‘> aThe number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension co'sts) exceeded £60,000 was:
;' - ~~;';«Qt§ EERTEE Y . ” &-'—:" IR T - 2019
wn . . . No.
£60,001-£70,000 =

£70,001-£80,000 'f"’
£80,001-£90,000 :
£130,001-£140,000

o

e. Keymanagement personnel

“aalach,

164
254
36

454

- g ¢

[T T

.

2018
No.
179
329
40
548
2018
No.
4
3
1
1

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 3. The total amount of
employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for

their services to the academy trust was £439,849 (2018: £496,098)

Related Party Transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the academy trust. The principal and other staff

trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of

employment.
The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

S Chamberlain {Chief Executive Officer)
’ Remuneration £135,000-140,000(2018: £135,000-£140,000)
Employer's pension contributions paid £20,000-£25,000{2018: £20,000-£25,000)

During the period ended 31 August 2019 £988 was reimbursed to trustees for travel and subsistence expenses (2018: £782).

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 29.
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11.  Trustees' and Officers’ Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts,
errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ended 31st
August 2019 was not separately identifiable (2018: Not separately identifiable)
The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

12.  Intangible Fixed Assets

COST:
At 1 September 2018
Additions

At 31 August 2019

DEPRECIATION:
At 1 September 2018
Chargeinyear

At 31 August 2019

NET BOOK VALUE:
At 31 August 2019

At 31 August 2018

13.  Tangible Fixed Assets

COST:

- vz At1September 2018
4EtAdditions

. Impairment ; .

TTETTAL31 August 2019

DEPRECIATION:

At 1 September 2018
Chargein'year
Impairment

At 31 August 2019

NET BOOK VALUE:
At 31 August 2019

At 31 August 2018

Software TOTAL
Development INTANGIBLE
ASSETS
3 £
79,380 79,380
79,380 79,380
13,230 13,230
13,230 13,230
66,151 66,151
l.b
roo fay
Assets Freehold Leasehold Furniture & ~ Computer TOTAL
Under land & Land & Equipment Equipment FIXED
Construction buildings Buildings . ASSETS
£ £ £ £ h £ £
44,910,674 9,776,134 _..—:,1']‘9,352 124,178 54,990,338
- 47850 ~ 459,893 40,429 548,172
44,910,674 9,823,984 539,245 164,607 55,538,510
e
it
1,180,599 223.979 59,169 26,119 1,488,966
537,869 119,734 99,728 45,248 802,579
1,718,468 342,813 158,897 71,367 2,291,545
43,192,206 9,481,171 480,348 93,240 53,246,965
43,730,075 9,553,055 120,183 98,059 53,501,372
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14.

15.

16.

Debtors
2019 2018
£ £
Trade debtors 36,241 31,453
VAT recoverable 196,260 76,584
Other debtors 3,840 23,827
Prepayments and accrued income 238,501 326,345
—a7a841 T 458,209
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2019 2018
£ £
Trade creditors 540,865 656,709
Taxation and social security . 240,110 256,397
Other creditors 307,084 490,327
Loans due for repayment 12,889 -
Accruals and deferred income 404,628 151,297
1,505,575 1,554,730
Deferred income 2019 2018
£ £
Deferred income at 1 September 2018 91,513 53,762
Released from previous years (91,513) (53,762)
Resources deferred inthe year - 361,278 91,513
Deferred income at 31 August 2019 . 361,278 91,513

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for UIFSM and Devolved Formula Capital. ...

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

R . .- 2019 2018
’ ¥ ) £ T £
DfE Loan 4 R 2,128,975 . 650,000
Salix Loans - . 80,417 -
oy “ 3 s T 2,209,392 e 650,000

PR . S, mae o e S e B e e

Loans totalling £2,128,975 from the ESFA have been provided at zero interestand are repayable at £25,000 per month, commencing September 2021.
PR

Salix Loans in respect of projects at 3 academies totalling £93,887 were received during the year. These loans interest free and are
repayable intwice yearlyinstalments over 5 years beginning in Sept 2019 and March 2020 respectively.
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17.

Funds

The income funds of the Trust comprise the following balances of grants to be apptied for specific purposes.

Balance at Balance at
1September Gains, losses 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure and transfers 2019
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {(GAG) (1,701,436) 13,288,093 (14,731,557) (3,144,900)
Start Up Grant - 16,333 {14,972) - 1,361
Pupil Premium - 1,047,755 {1,047,755) - -
Transfer on conversion . - - - -
Other grants 159,980 1,248,365 (1,408,345) - -
Pensionreserve (6,410,000) - (832,000) (1,432,000) (8,674,000)
(7,951,456) 15,600,546 (18,034,629} {1,432,000) (11,817,539)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 53,269,959 - (657,603) 52,612,356
DfE/ESFA capital grants - 1,532,088 (563,664) 968,424
Capital-expenditure from GAG 231,413 - (45,248) 186,165
53,501,372 1,532,088 {1,266,515) - 53,766,945
Total restricted funds 45,549,916 17,132,634 {19,301,144) (1,432,000} 41,949,406
Total unrestricted funds 510,113 1,523,254 {1,403,652) - 629,715
i :
Total funds 4 46,060,029 18,655,888 (20,704,796) (1,432,000} 42,579,121
eyt : » DRCH :'
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust's academies.
Restricted fixed asset funds consist of tangible fixed assets (£53,246,965), intangible fixed assets (£66,151), and unspent capital grants .
(£453,829). : i
Other restricted funds comprise funds received from the DfE,"ESFA, Local Authorities and other government bodies to reimburse ; '
expenditure incurred by the Trust in its ordinary operational activities. ’
.EZ"S.n:\parati'\;é information in respect of the prece-djng period is as follows: e _‘ -
an Balance at Balance at
2. 1September Gains, losses 31 August
2€ . 2017 Income Expenditure and transfers 2018
. & £ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds o ;-
General Annual Grant (GAG) 3 (293,163) 13,012,097 (14,236,659) (183,711) ~{1,701,436)
Start Up Grant - 41,333 {41,333) - -
Pupil Premium . - 1,104,164 {1,104,164) . - -
Transfer on conversion - (698,584) 698,584 - -
Other grants 201,000 2,316,845 (2,357,865) - 159,980
Pensionreserve (5,988,999) (1,693,001) 1,272,000 (6,410,000)
(6,081,162) 15,775,855 (18,734,438) 1,088,289 (7,951,456)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 50,071,828 4,432,934 (1,234,803) - 53,269,959
DfE/ESFA capital grants - 55,765 {55,765) - -
Capital expenditure from GAG - - (16,352) 247,765 231,413
Private sector capital sponsorship - - - - -
50,071,828 4,488,699 (1,306,920) 247,765 53,501,372
Totalrestricted funds 43,990,666 20,264,554 (20,041,358) 1,336,054 45,549,916
Total unrestricted funds 430,009 1,316,109 {1,171,951) (64,054) 510,113
Total funds 44,420,675 21,580,663 (21,213,309) 1,272,000 46,060,029
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Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows: Total Total

2019 2018

£ £

Lancot School o (61,018} 80,494
Kempston Challenger Academy . (956,263) (602,792)
Daubeney Academy (256,724) (45,781)
The Deanes {945,461) {288,103)
Hadleigh Junior School (71,512) (59,674)
The Westborough School 377,643 369,211
Springfield Academy : 229,192 122,435
Central Services (829,681} (607,134)
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve {2,513,824) (1,031,345)
Restricted fixed asset fund 53,766,945 53,501,372
Pension reserve (8,674,000) (6,410,000)
Total 42,579,121 46,060,027

The academy trust is carrying a net deficit of £2,513,824 on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds. As outlined in the
strategic report this is due to the financial difficulties the Trust faces, however, significant steps to address this have taken place and the Trust continues to
follow a S year recovery plan. The Trust is taking the following action to return to surplus:

Restructuring:

We carried out a large formal restructuring programmes across the trust in 2018/19 as we sought to re-balance the make up of our schools and central
provision, and align it to the current, and expected future provision of education across the organisation.

In 2019/20 we will have significantly reduced our cost base and whilst we do not expect to post a surplus, we expect a significant decrease in the deficit and a
surplus to follow in the next:3 years as our pupil numbers grow. We have worked closely with the Department for Education who are supportive of this
turnaround plan and, as disclosed in the Strategic report, have agreed to the delayed repayment of the loan in order to facilitate this recovery. We will be
continue to work closely with each school to ensure that the hard work in achieving the surplus does not detract in an appropriate level of re-investment and
support to the schools, and our children. :

The restructuring also applledto our central serwces which will also result in a significant reductlon in cost over the next 12 months and we expect to generate a
surplus centrally. N N

Pupil numbers: Based on.a.review of planhing assumption's from the local,autharities, and planning assumption around secoridary._places in particular, 'we-are
expecting a steady increase:@cross most of our schools over the next five years. This is particularly noticeable at the Deanes where a reversed previous
statutory proposal to close ptompted a very significant fall in numbers. The school is now recovering its numbers rapidly, wnth a full cohorts joining in year 7,
and a higher number of in ygar additions. We are confident that the positive pupil number trajectory will continue and helpjus address several of our larger
school based deficits. h A

Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Total Tota!

educational Other support Educational ?::ZLZ?:IS 2019 2018

support staff staff costs supplies depreciaﬁogn)

costs
£ £ £ £ £ £

Lancot School 1,313,364 195,775 18,640 336,044 1,863,823 1,825,102
Kempston Challenger Academy . 2,810,687 536,627 227,647 336,512 3,911,472 4,499,724
Daubeney Academy : 1,435,914 284,473 81,252 196,559 1,998,198 2,011,108
The Deanes 2,042,266 988,911 307,112 719,860 4,058,148 4,323,200
Hadleigh Junior Schoo! 1,024,664 206,018 61,944 141,150 1,433,776 1,543,981
The Westborough School . . 1,742,171 426,273 112,798 237,024 2,518,266 2,793,545
Springfield Academy : ) 1,069,931 198,771 59,667 499,230 1,827,599 1,408,370
Central Services 268,938 215,940 129,340 320,293 934,512 1,500,014
Academy Trust 11,707,935 3,052,788 998,400 2,786,672 18,545,794 19,905,044
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18.

19.

20.

21,

Analysis of Net Assets between Funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are represented by: 4

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Fund Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
Intangible fixed assets - 66,151 66,151
Tangible fixed assets - - 53,246,965 53,246,965
Current assets 629,715 571,427 453,829 1,654,971
Current liabilities {1,505,575}) (1,505,575)
Non-currentliabilities (2,209,392) (2,209,392)
Pension scheme liability (8,674,000} (8,674,000)
Total net assets 629,715 (11,817,539) 53,766,945 42,579,121
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
: Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Fund Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
Intangible fixed assets - - - 53,501,372
Tangible fixed assets - - 53,501,372 53,501,372
Current assets 510,113 663,274 - 1,173,387
Current liabilities . - - (1,554,730) - (1,554,730}
Non-currentliabilities} - (650,000) - {650,000)
Pension scheme liabilfty - (6,410,000} - (6,410,000)
Total netassets  '6) toTEE ‘ : $10,113 (7,951,456} - 53,501,372 46,060,029
Capital commitments
- 2019 2018
) ) . £ £
Contracted for, butifot provided in the financial statements 58,665 P -
l i W ’ RIS
Commitments under operating leases L i,
Operating leases i 4@
At 31 August 2019 thé total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating léases was:
Ry .
- 2019 ~; 2018
- £ £
Amounts due withirbne year 70,029 80,829
Amounts due betwe@n one and five years 78,360: 125,507

Amounts due after five years -

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute such amount as may be required (such amount not exceeding £10) to the assets of the
company in the event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, for the payment of the
Trust's debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up and for the adjustment

of the rights of contributories amongst themselves.
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22.

23.

24,

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Netincome/(expenditure) for the reporting period {(as per the statement of financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation (note 13)

Amortisation of intangibles (note 12)

Impairment of fixed assets (note 13)

Interest receivable (note 5)

Assets transferred from local authority {note 29)
Cash transferred from loca! authority

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Defined benefit pension scheme abligation inherited

Movement in connection with defined benefit pension scheme cost

(Increase) in debtors
Increase in creditors
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Repayments of borrowing
Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
£
““Dividends, interest and rents from investments
,%Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
..xPurchase of tangible fixed assets s
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
‘Capital grants from DfE/ESFA
.Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities
hie .
& ‘
tAnalysis oficash and cash equivalents
L R

B

Cash in hand and at bani(

P

i

'm Notice deposits {less than 3 months)
-:Total cash and cash equivalents
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2019
£

(2,048,908)

802,579
13,230
(959)

{1,532,088)

832,000
(16,633)
(49,156)

(1,999,934)

2019
£

1,559,392
1,559,392

2019

959

(548,172)
(79,380)
1,532,088

905,495

" At31 August

--2019
PP S
"~1,180,131

1,180,131

PRI

2018

367,354
706,664

600,256
(511)
(4,432,934)

840,000
853,000

83,259
258,751

(724,161)

2018
£

650,000
650,000

2018

511

- (119,819)

{119,308)

At 31 August
2018

715,178

215,178



26.

Pensions and similar obligations

The academy trust’s employees 'belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales ('i'PS) for academic and related
staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Bedford Borough Council and Essex County Council. Both
are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £215,966 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018: £234,468) and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014.
Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended)
and the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). Members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis with contributions from members and the
employer being credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

The employer contribution rate as set by the Secretary of State following scheme valuations undertaken by the Government Actuary's Department. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the TPS was prepared as at 31 March 2016 and the Valuation Report, which was published in March 2019, confirmed that the
employer contribution rate for the TPS would increase from 16.4% to 23.6% from 1 September 2019. Employers are also required to pay a scheme
administration levy of 0.08% giving a total employer contribution rate of 23.8%.

The 31 March 2016 Valuation Report was prepared in accordance with the benefits set out in the scheme regulations and under ithe approach specified in the
Directions, as they applied at 5 lﬂarch 2019. However the assumptions were considered and set by the Department for Educatlon,’anor to the ruling in the
'McCloud/Sergeant’ case.

- . . . 'l’ c .

This case has required the courts to consider cases regarding the implementation of the 2015 reforms to Public Service Pensions including the Teachers'
Pensions. On 27 June 2019 the Supreme Court denied the government permission to appeal the Court of Appeal's judgement that transitional reforms
introduced to the reformed pension schemes in 2015 gave rise to unlawful age discrimination. The government is respecting the Court's decision and has said
it will engage fully with the Employment Tribunal as well as employer and member representatives to agree how the discriminations will be remedied.

The TPS is subject to a cost capmechamsm which was put in place to protect taxpayers against unforeseen changes in scheme costs The Chief Secretary to the
Treasury, having in 2018 annotifced that there, would be a review of this cost cap mechanism, in January 2019 announced a pause to the€ost-cap mechanism
following the Court of Appeal's«ruling in the McCIoud/Sargeant case and until there is certainty about the value of pensions to employees from April 2015
onwards. F e lenst . Lo Loteass .

In view of the above rulings a‘mﬁ decisions the assumptions used in the 31 March 2016 Actuarial Valuation may become ina'";;propriate In this scenario a
valuation prepared in accordance with revised benefits and suitably revised assumptions would yield different results than those contained in the Actuarial
Valuation. Until a remedy to tR&' discrimination conclusion has been determined by the Employment Tribunal it is not possmlé‘ to conclude on any financial
impact or future changes to the contribution rates of the TPS. Accordingly no provision for any additional past benefit penslon costs is included in these
financialstatements. ‘

£ 2.
The employer’s pension costsépaid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,135,438 (2018: £1,178,253). A copy of the valiation report and supporting

v
documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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26.  Pensions and similar obligations {continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee- administered funds. The total contribution made for the year
ended 31 August 2019 was £1,046,000 (2018: £956,000), of which employer’s contributions totalled £860,000 (2018: £759,000) and employees’ contributions
totalled £186,000(2018: £197,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are variable based on pay.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local
Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The following figures are a summary of the figures for the seven academies within the Trust at 31 August 2019.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

At 31 August At 31 August

2019 2018
Rate of increase in salaries 2.5%-3.7% 2.7%-3.3%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.2% - 2.3%-2.4%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.9% 2.7%- 2.8%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age

65 are:
. At 31 August . At 31 August .
* . 2019 2018
Retiring today ) years years .
cechs Males B 20.7-21.3 223-22.4 T )
o Females . ) 23.2-23.6 24.5-24.8 N
Retiring in 20 years
. Males . 21.7-23.0 24.0-24.5
- Females - . 24.7-25.4 26.2-27.1 -
: Sensitivity Analysis ‘ ’
'.’ ", M e, At 31 August . : At 31 Audust
S g fu 2019 2018
. R ST . e M R £000 - ., ... . . £000
S Discount rate +0.1% ™ BN E (303) g
Discount rate -0.1% o 367 303 .-
. Mortality assumption - 1 year increase P 527 392 .
Do Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease . 5 (508) (392) .:.
ol CPlrate +0.1% 7 322 370 7
: CPIrate-0.1% : (313) : (368)
~~ Salaryincrease rate +0.1% e 45 46
e Salaryincrease rate -0.1% = (43) ) @e) =
The Academy Trust's share of the assets of the scheme were:
Fair value at Fair value at
31 August Share 31 August Share
2019 2018
£ % £ %
Equities 4,011,000 66 3,089,000 61
Gilts 171,000 3 132,000 3
Corporate bonds ’ 638,000 11 511,000 10
Property 529,000 9 456,000 9
Cash and other liquid assets 228,000 4 582,000 11
Alternative assets 303,000 5 222,000 4
Other managed funds 159,000 3 95,000 2
Total market value of assets 6,039,000 100 5,087,000 100

The actual return on the scheme assets in the year was £296,000 (2018: £245,000)
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26.  Pensionsand similar obligations {continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme {continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

2019 2018
£ £
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) (1,153,000) (1,442,000)
Past service cost (366,000)
Interest cost {171,000) {170,000)
Admin expenses (2,000)
Total amount recognised in the SOFA {1,692,000) {1,612,000)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
At 1 September 11,497,000 9,847,000
Conversion of academy trusts - 887,000
Current service cost 1,153,000 1,442,000
Past service cost including curtailments 366,000 -
Interest cost 319,000 281,000
Employee contributions 186,000 197,000
Actuarial {gain)/loss 1,580,000 (1,138,000)
Plan introductions, benefit changes and settlements {388,000) {19,000)
= At 31 August 2 14,713,000 11,497,000 <
4 4 4
Changes In the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets: ’
2019 2018
£ £
At 1 September 3 3 5,087,000 3,858,000 5
Conversion of academy trusts ' N - 47,000 .
Interestincome 148,000 . 111,000
; ~*sr . Returnonassets less interest 146,000 134,000
£ - > Actuarial gain / {loss) e : . - - i
e * _...:- Employercontributions R R St 1 .. 860,000 L 759,000 ot
H Employee contributions : i 186,000 ) 197,000 i
I Plan introductions, benefit changes and settlements (388,000) {19,000} e
'; At 31 August 6,039,000 5,087,000 "'
es On 26 October 2018 the High Court ruled that equalisation for the effect of un@gual Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) is required. The ruling confirmed 18
el that trustees have a duty “to equalise benefits for men and women so as to alter the result which is at present produced in relation to GMPs”. According to X
el HM Treasury, any impact of GMPs is unlikely to be material to the pension valuation and therefare no allowance for GMP equalisation has been made in the W
E FRS102 LGPS pension liability for this year. Full GMP indexation will be applied to the LGPS pension liability once changes to the LGPS have been formally *
. announced. -
27.  CentralServices
The academy trust has provided the following services to its academies during the year:
* estateservices
* humanresources
* financial services
* legal services
* educational support services
* others as arising
The trust charges for these services based on a 6% charge on GAG income in each academy.
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:
2019 2018
£ . £
Lancot School ) 84,116 83,748
Kempston Challenger Academy 190,677 214,568
Daubeney Academy 88,088 99,517
The Deanes 142,254 137,867
Hadleigh Junior School 70,827 66,681
The Westborough School 123,628 ’ 134,579
Springfield Primary School 91,024 69,281

51



28.

29.

Agencyarrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agency for the ESFA. In the accounting period ended 31 August 2019 the academy trust
received £11,042 (2018: £14,092) and distributed all of this amount from the fund during the year. There is no amount included in creditors as repayable to
the ESFA. . .

Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations,
transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the AFH and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected
and related party transactions. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Pop-Up Foundation Limited - A company in which Stephen Chamberlain (Chief Executive Officer of the Trust) has been a director since March 2018:

CMAT procured services totalling £1,800 during the period related to the delivery and development of residential programmes in France for CMAT pupils and
linking CMAT academies to other schools and education provisions internationally that are focused on developing learning outside the classroom in
sustainable communities. This was delivered at cost on a non-profit basis.
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